
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, August 15, 2017 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Zoning Public Hearing 
4. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently zoned 

AG-1 [Map 050, Parcel 015] 

5. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road 

from AG-1 to AG-2 [Map 024, part of Parcel 003] 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

7. Approval of Agenda 

8. Consent Agenda 
a.  Approval of Minutes - August 4, 2017 Regular Meeting 
b.  Approval of Minutes - August 4, 2017 Budget Work Session 
c.  Approval of Minutes - August 7, 2017 Budget Work Session 

9. Discussion and possible action to increase the County Attorney Fee 

10. Update on the regional TSPLOST 

11. Discussion of refinancing the Sinclair Water Authority USDA loan 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 

13. County Attorney Report 

14. Commissioner Announcements 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 

 
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 

public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 
during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda. 

  

1



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently zoned 

AG-1 [Map 050, Parcel 015] 

  

2



 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

August 7,July 28,  2017 

 

               TO:        Board of Commissions  

 

               FROM:  Karen Pennamon 

 

               RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 8/15/2017 

             

  

       9. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive.  Presently zoned 

AG-1. [Map 050, Parcel 015]. *  The applicant is requesting a conditional use at 202 

Horton Drive for a community event center.  To utilize this facility as a community event 

center without rezoning the property to commercial, a conditional use permit is required. 

The building was developed and established in the 1984 as Boswell’s Night Club and years 

later the ownership changed and it became Texlexia Night Club.  The applicant purchased 

the property in August 2012 and is being taxed by the Putnam County Tax Assessors office 

for a commercial use at a rate of $1,900 per year. Mr. Mullins has no desire to reopen the 

facility as a night club.  However, he would like to convert the building into a family-

oriented event center that will host: wedding receptions, anniversary dinners, holiday and 

birthday celebrations, bingo nights, training, and community service events.  The structure 

has not been utilized for several years but it remains structurally sound and in good 

condition. This property is located at the dead end of Horton Drive and is approximately a 

mile away from Glenwood Springs Road.  It abuts all AG-1 parcels and a river which is 

located behind the building.  Per the Tax Assessor’s website, there are several residences on 

Horton Drive with the closest being at least 2,084 feet and the closest residences in front 

and across the river is approximately 5,000 feet from the proposed community center. 

Therefore, I see no adverse effect the proposed use would on the adjacent properties or 

residents in that community.  In addition, Mr. Mullins will be required to submit and 

implement a parking plan that will limit and control parking along the right-of-way.  It is 

the opinion of staff that the proposed use would have no adverse effect on surrounding 

properties, roads, highways or traffic patterns. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a community event center 

at 202 Horton Drive with the following conditions: 1) Owners shall present a parking 

plan, prepared by a design professional which shall be approved by the Planning Director 

and executed prior to the issuance of a business registration; 2) Hours of operation shall 

not exceed 12:00 a.m. 

 

  

  
 

 

3



Board of Commissioners Notice 
August 3, 2017 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 

8. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently 
zoned AG-1. [Map 050, Parcel 015]. * 
Planning & Zoning Commission's recommendation is for approval of a 
conditional use for a community event center at 202 Horton Drive with the 
following conditions: 1) Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a 
design professional which shall be approved by the Planning Director and 
executed prior to the issuance of a business registration; 2) Hours of operation 
shall not exceed 12:00 a.m. 

9. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station 
Road from AG-1 to AG-2. [Map 024, part of Parcel 003]. * 
Planning & Zoning Commission's recommendation is for approval to rezone 
22.04 acres from AG-1 to AG-2. 

8-17 Agenda 

4



Approved Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 1                                                                                                        

August 3, 2017                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                      

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Thursday, August 3, 2017 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

August 3, 2017 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

EXCERPT 

 

 

9. 

 

Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive.  Presently 

zoned AG-1. [Map 050, Parcel 015]. * 

Mr. Marshall stated that the Planning Director Ms. Lisa Jackson is recusing herself from 

this item due to being of relation to the applicant, because of this Mrs. Karen Pennamon 

authored the staff recommendation. Mr. Antonio Mullins represented this request. He stated 

that after retiring from the military and upon returning to Putnam he purchased the venue and 

would like to use it as a community center. Mr. Mullins stated he is requesting a conditional 

use at 202 Horton Drive to use as a community event center. Mr. Ward stated he had visited 

the property and had no problem with the request. Staff recommendation is for approval of a 

conditional use for a community event center at 202 Horton Drive with the following 

conditions: 1) Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a design professional which 

shall be approved by the Planning Director and executed prior to the issuance of a business 

registration; 2) Hours of operation shall not exceed 12:00 a.m. No one spoke in opposition to 

this request. Mr. Ward made a motion for approval. Mr. Langley seconded. All approved. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Lisa Jackson                                                               James Marshall, Jr.    

P&D Director                                                             Chairman   

 

 

  

5



Glades Nw 	" 
I 21 
 0 1 

14  IRVIN 4.;66,4n  

ISO 

444\

0,4, 

vs_ 

\\ _ 
[ Fici°N.- 's** 

1
Irs'Sa 7/  

Higm. 
2,2 swY 

" a  

) 
1E 

dit  
1.7k. 
4k-6Zr. 

.,....-R?W ntatv 
 

gi. ...,, / !..  ',,, A 
'"0- 

	

- 	"5'* 

,j,5t 
A 	 ,2 66=s- 	Ot. Pan* 

ct' se Sr. 
IN 

. 	I.0 
s

.  . 
 I ,,.., 

 

	

'651t141 	
401 1.1  O'  

-4.' 	
' 	'41,Ni 	6, 

5. 5• io ••,„ 	eet, .„.:00...„. ,!,,,,,, ,,c,  ,',...% 
A 4  cv sw-T,,-  
I 	4 	 4 

004 	A 14°' 

	

,0 	A.,..,i 	1: 	 W55' .74  , 	 011 

ADDISON..., 
4;0'  

L4n,',36 

'ts+het..)24., 741 jsti^'  

f,affee 	(4„' 

4, tt‘ 	Ili. 
SI4S 

.1%4<■>,,, 
"Pi,:  c!cscr,  \ 	tk•c,ne'- 

P.dnR. 	

sp 

e 
1,1 

ee/ 	% 
/ - 1> 

`N 1111,L 

	

A.4r,,,,hi 	tt, 	i.' 
ilA 	i= 0 

1 7 
— 	4.,:i?a--, 	, . ".; .\,,4.- 

17 	k. 	4 
,v, it; 	

cAZ:. 

tia. 	i 4i.7  /* IX 
le) 	 4.0 

gi 	 -------.9.44.% 
,e0.  

14'1 	 1 
/ 	 0(  

	

Id 	 ,e'-lsa. 	er 
V..._ 

` '1 	 Y2 
r 

' 1  „<1 s .BROVVISF18  r::"4°'''  
.4?

-9'^ee .,X, Si 

it  ‘ 
 ■ /c 

9.,:r.4-dett--N,  

0010,99.  
To,-6."--  , .,4".F9Pe. , .i -...___— —.. 	 oi- 

r:;.  . '' torC%0,1-se." 7 

L Se4oi 
rh... Aic;'•Z9B,‘ 
I 

tl'oCe7 

 

	

*u 
	

te°' 

6 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 
COMMISSION DISTRICTS 

'41‘ 	
212SW 

„015V"  
POSE 

iD PO. 	r  

Pf,A, 

4.3 

Data source: Commission districts represented on tins map are provided by data from 
the Georgia Legislative and Congressional Reapportionment Office. Base data features 
are derived from • variety of digital data sources, including the Middle Georgia Regional 
Commission and other entities. As such the intended use of this map is for general planing 
and related purposes only. 

MAP SCALE I f= 5,697.28 	 SCALE RATIO. 1 .88,367.34 DATE DECEMBER 2016 

9. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 050, 
Parcel 0151. * 

10. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road from AG-1 to AG-2. 
[Map 024, part of Parcel 0031. * 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road 

from AG-1 to AG-2 [Map 024, part of Parcel 003] 

  

17



 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

                
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

August 7July 28, 2017 

 

               TO:        Board of Commissions  

 

               FROM:  Lisa Jackson  

 

               RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 8/15/2017 

             

       9. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road 

from AG-1 to AG-2. [Map 024, part of Parcel 003]. * The applicants are requesting to 

rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road from AG-1 to AG-2.  They would like 

to sell 11.02 acres and keep 11.02 acres. The minimum lot size in the AG-1 district is 20 

acres so in order to subdivide the property it must be rezoned to a conforming zoning 

district. The applicants would like to maintain an agriculture use for this property and 

the only option is the AG-2 district which minimum lot size requirement is 5 acres.  

There are no residences adjacent to this property so there is not an immediate impact on 

the adjacent neighbors. The surrounding properties are zoned AG-1 therefore, the 

proposed AG-2 zoning district will have no adverse effect on any nearby roads or 

surrounding properties. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 22.04 acres from AG-1 to AG-2. 

 

 

 

  

  

  
 

 

18



Board of Commissioners Notice 
August 3, 2017 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 

8. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently 
zoned AG-1. [Map 050, Parcel 015]. * 
Planning & Zoning Commission's recommendation is for approval of a 
conditional use for a community event center at 202 Horton Drive with the 
following conditions: 1) Owners shall present a parking plan, prepared by a 
design professional which shall be approved by the Planning Director and 
executed prior to the issuance of a business registration; 2) Hours of operation 
shall not exceed 12:00 a.m. 

9. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station 
Road from AG-1 to AG-2. [Map 024, part of Parcel 003]. * 
Planning & Zoning Commission's recommendation is for approval to rezone 
22.04 acres from AG-1 to AG-2. 

8-17 Agenda 

19



Approved Minutes                                                                           Page 1 of 1                                                                                                        

August 3, 2017                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                      

PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Thursday, August 3, 2017 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

August 3, 2017 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

EXCERPT 

 

 

10. 

 

Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station 

Road from AG-1 to AG-2. [Map 024, part of Parcel 003]. * 

Mr. James Peebles represented this request. He is requesting to rezone 22.04 acres from 

AG-1 to AG-2. Mr. Peebles stated that the 22.04 acres has been subdivided and resurveyed 

into two equal lots in order to be sold and comply with the zoning district. He is wanting to 

keep the property zoned agriculture which is why he is requesting the AG-2 designation. Mr. 

Ward stated he had visited the property and has no problem with the request. No one spoke 

in opposition to this request. Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 22.04 acres 

from AG-1 to AG-2.  Mr. Ward made a motion for approval. Mr. Oberdeck seconded. All 

approved. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Lisa Jackson                                                               James Marshall, Jr.    

P&D Director                                                             Chairman   

 

 

 

 

  

20



Glades Nw 	" 
I 21 
 0 1 

14  IRVIN 4.;66,4n  

ISO 

444\

0,4, 

vs_ 

\\ _ 
[ Fici°N.- 's** 

1
Irs'Sa 7/  

Higm. 
2,2 swY 

" a  

) 
1E 

dit  
1.7k. 
4k-6Zr. 

.,....-R?W ntatv 
 

gi. ...,, / !..  ',,, A 
'"0- 

	

- 	"5'* 

,j,5t 
A 	 ,2 66=s- 	Ot. Pan* 

ct' se Sr. 
IN 

. 	I.0 
s

.  . 
 I ,,.., 

 

	

'651t141 	
401 1.1  O'  

-4.' 	
' 	'41,Ni 	6, 

5. 5• io ••,„ 	eet, .„.:00...„. ,!,,,,,, ,,c,  ,',...% 
A 4  cv sw-T,,-  
I 	4 	 4 

004 	A 14°' 

	

,0 	A.,..,i 	1: 	 W55' .74  , 	 011 

ADDISON..., 
4;0'  

L4n,',36 

'ts+het..)24., 741 jsti^'  

f,affee 	(4„' 

4, tt‘ 	Ili. 
SI4S 

.1%4<■>,,, 
"Pi,:  c!cscr,  \ 	tk•c,ne'- 

P.dnR. 	

sp 

e 
1,1 

ee/ 	% 
/ - 1> 

`N 1111,L 

	

A.4r,,,,hi 	tt, 	i.' 
ilA 	i= 0 

1 7 
— 	4.,:i?a--, 	, . ".; .\,,4.- 

17 	k. 	4 
,v, it; 	

cAZ:. 

tia. 	i 4i.7  /* IX 
le) 	 4.0 

gi 	 -------.9.44.% 
,e0.  

14'1 	 1 
/ 	 0(  

	

Id 	 ,e'-lsa. 	er 
V..._ 

` '1 	 Y2 
r 

' 1  „<1 s .BROVVISF18  r::"4°'''  
.4?

-9'^ee .,X, Si 

it  ‘ 
 ■ /c 

9.,:r.4-dett--N,  

0010,99.  
To,-6."--  , .,4".F9Pe. , .i -...___— —.. 	 oi- 

r:;.  . '' torC%0,1-se." 7 

L Se4oi 
rh... Aic;'•Z9B,‘ 
I 

tl'oCe7 

 

	

*u 
	

te°' 

6 

PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 
COMMISSION DISTRICTS 

'41‘ 	
212SW 

„015V"  
POSE 

iD PO. 	r  

Pf,A, 

4.3 

Data source: Commission districts represented on tins map are provided by data from 
the Georgia Legislative and Congressional Reapportionment Office. Base data features 
are derived from • variety of digital data sources, including the Middle Georgia Regional 
Commission and other entities. As such the intended use of this map is for general planing 
and related purposes only. 

MAP SCALE I f= 5,697.28 	 SCALE RATIO. 1 .88,367.34 DATE DECEMBER 2016 

9. Request by Antonio Mullins for a conditional use at 202 Horton Drive. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 050, 
Parcel 0151. * 

10. Request by James & Nina Peebles to rezone 22.04 acres at 143 Checking Station Road from AG-1 to AG-2. 
[Map 024, part of Parcel 0031. * 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Consent Agenda 

a.  Approval of Minutes - August 4, 2017 Regular Meeting 
b.  Approval of Minutes - August 4, 2017 Budget Work Session 
c.  Approval of Minutes - August 7, 2017 Budget Work Session 

 

  

29



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Friday, August 4, 2017 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, August 4, 2017 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT 

Chairman Stephen J. Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel W. Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor J. Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. (Copy of agenda made a part of the 

minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by Rev. Ford G’Segner. 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hersey. 

 

4. Public Comments 

Mr. Tom Thompson commented on the plight of rural hospitals and requested additional funding 

to support Putnam General Hospital.  Mr. Don Cottrell gave thanks for whoever fixed the corner 

of Long Shoals Road and Hwy 16, advised that Chief Appraiser Charles Anglin has announced 

his retirement and that his replacement will need a new car. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

5. Approval of Agenda 

Motion by: Trevor Addison to approve the Agenda 

Second by: Kelvin Irvin 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

6.a. Approval of Minutes - July 18, 2017 Regular Meeting 

6.b. Approval of Minutes - July 28, 2017 Called Meeting 

6.c. Approval of Minutes - July 28, 2017 Executive Session 

Motion by: Trevor Addison to approve the Consent Agenda 

Second by: Alan Foster 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Irvin abstained due to his absence from the July 28 meeting. 

 

7. Presentation from Twin Bridges Fire Association - Sparky the Fire Dog 

Commissioner Addison reminded everyone of the recent approval of the agreement with the 

Twin Bridges Fire Association to take care of Sparky the Fire Dog.  He introduced the President 

of the Association, Mr. Emory Turner; Vice President, Mr. Scott Trull; and one of the members, 

Mr. Billy Webster.  Mr. Turner thanked the board for allowing them to take care of Sparky and 

Mr. Trull gave a brief history of Sparky.  He also thanked Mr. Chuck Foy for working on the 

mechanics of Sparky and Mr. John Langley for the body work.  Sparky was introduced and gave 

a demonstration of his abilities, including squirting water at Mr. Webster.  Mr. Webster also 

thanked the board and advised that Sparky still had a few tweaks and that operators were being 

trained.  He also advised that Sparky will be available for county events later this year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Addendum to Lease Agreement with Georgia Writers 

Museum 

Motion by: Trevor Addison to authorize the Chairman to sign an Addendum to the Lease 

Agreement with Georgia Writers Museum 

Second by: Alan Foster 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Copy of addendum made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

9. Approval of Putnam County Fixed Assets proposed for Surplus 

Motion by: Alan Foster to approve the list of old golf course assets for surplus and allow county 

manager to dispose on Govdeals.com 

Second by: Trevor Addison 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Copy of surplus list made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Eatonton 

regarding the single county TSPLOST 

Motion by: Alan Foster to authorize the Chairman to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement with 

the City of Eatonton regarding the single county TSPLOST conditioned upon the City providing 

their list of projects to complete Exhibit A 

Second by: Trevor Addison 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution calling for the single county TSPLOST  

Motion by: Kelvin Irvin to authorize the Chairman to sign any and all documents necessary to 

place single county TSPLOST on November 7, 2017 ballot 

Second by: Daniel Brown 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

12. Discussion and possible action regarding Planning & Zoning Agreement 

Motion by: Alan Foster to instruct the County Manager to transmit a letter to the City of 

Eatonton notifying them of our intent to terminate in 60 days the agreement regarding zoning 

Second by: Kelvin Irvin 

 

Motion amended by: Alan Foster to also enter into negotiations for a revised agreement in 

conjunction with the Service Delivery Strategy negotiations 

Second by: Stephen Hersey 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote on original motion as amended: 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 GDOT committed $80,000 towards the Off-System Safety Improvements program 

 congratulated Finance Department for 4th year in a row receiving GFOA Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 

 

14. County Attorney Report 

No report 

 

 

 

33



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Foster: none 

 

Commissioner Addison: none 

 

Chairman Hersey: reminded all of the budget work session following a short break 

 

16. Adjournment 

Motion by: Kelvin Irvin to adjourn the meeting 

Second by: Daniel Brown 

 

Commissioner YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

Stephen Hersey 

Trevor Addison 

Daniel Brown 

Alan Foster 

Kelvin Irvin 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:35 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

34



DRAFT Budget Work Session Minutes                         Page 1 of 1                                                                                     Approved 

August 4, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Friday, August 4, 2017 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, August 4, 2017 at approximately 

10:54 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 204, 

Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT      STAFF PRESENT 

Chairman Stephen J. Hersey    County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin    Asst. County Manager Lisa Jackson 

Commissioner Daniel W. Brown   County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Commissioner Alan Foster    Finance Director Linda Cook 

Commissioner Trevor J. Addison   Accounting Technician Barbara Vargo 

 

 

1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Vice Chairman Foster called the work session to order at approximately 10:54 a.m.  Chairman 

Hersey arrived a few minutes later.  (Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book 

page __________.) 

 

2. Budget Discussions 

Various budget requests were discussed.  Comments were made by Nickie Corbitt for Family & 

Children Services, Alan Horton for Putnam General Hospital, Kaitlyn Parham for Chamber of 

Commerce (distributed stress cows), Colby Hunter, Eatonton Public Library, Irene Mitchell for 

Health Department, Howard Sills for Sheriff/Jail/EMA, Sheila Perry for Board of 

Equalization/Superior Court/Clerk of Superior Court/State Court/Juvenile Court, Pat Underkofler 

for Probate Court, Terry Schwindler for Putnam Development Authority (handout distributed), 

and Pam Lancaster for Tax Commissioner.  No action was taken. (Copy of documents made a 

part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

3. Adjournment 

Chairman Hersey adjourned the work session at approximately 1:46 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

35



DRAFT Budget Work Session Minutes                         Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

August 7, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Monday, August 7, 2017 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Monday, August 7, 2017 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 204, 

Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT 

Chairman Stephen J. Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel W. Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor J. Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Asst. County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Finance Director Linda Cook 

Accounting Technician Jennifer Fricks 

 

 

1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Vice Chairman Foster called the work session to order at approximately 9:03 a.m.  Chairman 

Hersey arrived a few minutes later.  (Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book 

page __________.) 

 

2. Budget Discussions 

Various budget requests were discussed.  Comments were made by Keith Fielder for County 

Extension Service, Shane Hill for Fire Stations & Rescue, Dianne Pounds for Public Transit 

System, Ricky Duvall for Uncle Remus Golf Course, Stephen Waskey for Recreation 

Department, Lonnie Campbell for Oconee Springs Park, Christine Tillman for Animal Services, 

Tony Clack for Public Works, Lynne Laseter for Board of Elections and Registration, Nathan 

Mason for Ambulance Service, and Cynthia Miller for Human Resources.  No action was taken. 

 

 

Work Session recessed at approximately 10:58 a.m. 

Work Session reconvened at approximately 11:12 a.m. 

 

 

 

36



DRAFT Budget Work Session Minutes                         Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

August 7, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

3. Adjournment 

Chairman Hersey adjourned the work session at approximately 12:52 p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

37



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Update on the regional TSPLOST 

  

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Discussion of refinancing the Sinclair Water Authority USDA loan 

  

47



 

Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702 
3050 Peachtree Road, N.W. 

Atlanta, Georgia 30305 
404.240.6840:  Office 

404.240.6891:  Fax 
To:  Joan Minton, Chairman – Sinclair Water Authority 
From:   Bill Camp – Raymond James 
Date:  August 10, 2017 
Re: Potential Refunding of the Authority’s Series 2008A, B, & C Bonds 
 

 

Thank you for talking with me earlier this week.  I wanted give you and the Authority members 
more details about the potential refunding transaction we discussed.  As you know we recently priced 
and closed a very similar refunding transaction for the Eatonton-Putnam Water and Sewer Authority.  
Many of the assumptions regarding your potential refunding are based on the details of that actual 
transaction.  

 
Details of your existing Debt: 
 
Series 2008A Bond:  $8.06 million currently outstanding (approximately) @ 4.125%  
Series 2008B Bond:  $3.15 million currently outstanding (approximately) @ 4.125% 
Series 2008C Bond:  $1.98 million currently outstanding (approximately) @ 4.375% 
Payments:  Monthly 
Call Features:  Each can be prepaid with no penalty at any time. 
Final Maturity:  April 15, 2018 (for each A, B & C). 
 
 
Series 2017 Refunding Assumptions: 
Principal Amount: $12.56 million 
Payments:  semi-annual interest & annual principal  
Call Feature:  beginning in 10 years  without penalty 
Final Maturity:  same as existing debt   
 
 
Savings Projections: 

          Total Savings      Present Value ($)      PV as % 2008 Par       
Current Market +0.25% $1,987,883  $396,292  3.0% 
Current Market  $2,430,467 $683,930  5.2% 
Current Market -0.25% $2,843,336         $966,720             7.3% 

 
(Note: annual savings ranges shown on the next page). 
 
  

48



 

 

 

 
 

 

Projected Debt Service Savings 
Current +0.25% Current Market Current -0.25%

Year Savings Savings Savings
2018 65,956.73 75,759.85 90,328.60
2019 65,725.48 80,181.72 94,019.22
2020 62,775.48 77,081.72 90,769.22
2021 65,125.47 79,281.71 92,819.21
2022 62,625.47 76,631.71 90,019.21
2023 65,425.49 79,281.73 92,519.23
2024 66,025.49 79,681.73 92,719.23
2025 62,025.49 80,481.73 93,319.23
2026 63,625.49 76,681.73 89,319.23
2027 65,625.47 78,481.71 90,919.21
2028 64,925.48 77,631.72 89,919.22
2029 64,525.49 77,081.73 89,219.23
2030 62,725.48 80,081.72 92,019.22
2031 66,525.48 78,481.72 90,219.22
2032 65,725.49 77,481.73 94,019.23
2033 65,525.49 77,081.73 93,219.23
2034 62,075.48 78,481.72 89,319.22
2035 65,075.48 76,156.72 91,831.72
2036 62,887.97 78,812.97 94,175.47
2037 64,887.98 80,412.98 90,375.48
2038 64,187.99 79,387.99 94,187.99
2039 62,387.97 77,187.97 91,587.97
2040 66,387.98 75,787.98 89,787.98
2041 65,987.98 80,187.98 93,787.98
2042 61,387.98 80,187.98 93,387.98
2043 62,788.00 75,988.00 93,788.00
2044 64,987.99 77,787.99 89,987.99
2045 62,987.98 80,387.98 92,187.98
2046 61,987.99 78,787.99 90,187.99
2047 61,987.99 78,187.99 89,187.99
2048 62,987.98 78,587.98 94,187.98

Total $1,987,883.71 $2,427,717.91 $2,843,336.66

Present Value Analysis Summary (Gross to Gross) 

Gross PV Debt Service Savings $1,110,281.76 $1,397,919.64 $1,680,709.30

Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund ($713,988.80) ($713,988.80) ($713,988.80)

Present Value Benefit $396,292.96 $683,930.84 $966,720.50

Net PV Benefit /Refunded Principal 3.005% 5.186% 7.331%

Net PV Benefit / Refunding Principal 3.092% 5.445% 7.850%

49



 

 

 
We seek to be engaged as your Underwriter on the potential Refunding Bonds.  We would like 

to discuss the details of this potential transaction with you further and give you our opinions about 
savings thresholds, etc.  As we discussed, recent regulatory changes to our industry have impacted how 
and when we can give you financial advice. We would prefer to have a free flow of information and 
ideas so that we can discuss details, structuring options, and give specific advice to you regarding this 
potential transaction.   

 
In order to do that, we need to be engaged to provide these services.  This can be accomplished 

with a non-binding letter of intent to provide underwriter services. I have included this letter for your 
review as a separate attachment.  Please remember, we are willing to work on the proposed 
transaction and receive compensation only if and when the transaction closes.  We are at your 
disposal so please do not hesitate to contact me at 404-240-6805 or e-mail: 
william.camp@raymondjames.com. 
 
   

Thank you, 
 

                                                                                          
    William J. “Bill” Camp 

     Managing Director 
 
 

 
 
 

  

50



 

 

ABOUT US: 
 
GEORGIA/LOCAL PRESENCE.  Raymond 
James has more public finance resources 
in Georgia than any other firm.  Our 
Georgia public finance office is staffed 
with 14 professionals, including 8 senior 
bankers.  Furthermore, we have the only 
full service primary underwriting desk in 
Georgia staffed with 18 fixed income 
professionals which will handle this bond 
pricing.  Included in this figure are 
underwriters, traders and sales people, 
including 8 fixed income sales generalists 
and 2 members of our Dedicated 
Municipal Group.  The Firm operates 82 
retail offices in Georgia as shown on the 
accompanying map.  Raymond James’ 271 
financial advisors provide brokerage 
services to 83,400 retail accounts in 
Georgia with a combined account balance 
of approximately $15.9 billion.   
 

 

 
 
For the first two quarters of 2017, we have underwritten more transactions for Georgia  
issuers than any other firm.  The 14 transactions total $350.1 Million (15.2% market share). 

Par Amount Rank Mkt Share 
($ millions) (# issues) % 

2016 607.8 1 14.7 32 
2015 945.6 1 27.1 38 
2014 329.3 2 14.3 19 
2013 436.2 2 19.5 31 
2012 798.5 2 22.9 41 
2011 943.7 1 25.7 36 
2010 689.1 1 25.8 41 
2009 622.8 2 18.4 35 
2008 432.4 2 16.4 27 

State of Georgia 
Raymond James Lead Managed Negotiated Underwriting 

Full To Book (Equal if Joint) 

Time Period 
Number  
of Issues 

51



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

August 10, 2017       
 
Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive 
Milledgeville, Georgia 31061 
 
Re:  Letter of Intent for Underwriting Services : 
 
Dear Chairperson Joan Minton:   

In order for Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (“RJA”) to give you advice regarding one or more related 
transactions, and to document our compliance with an exception to the Municipal Advisor Rule, we ask 
that you agree, and acknowledge by signing below, to the following: 

The Sinclair Water Authority (the “Issuer”) is aware of the “Municipal Advisor Rule” of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (effective July 1, 2014) and the underwriter exception from the definition of 
“municipal advisor” for a firm serving as an underwriter for one or more series of bonds or other 
municipal securities.  

The Sinclair Water Authority wishes to engage RJA as the underwriter for bonds to potentially refinance 
certain outstanding Obligations Baldwin County and Putnam County borrowed through the Authority.  
As an underwriter, RJA may provide advice to Baldwin County, Putnam County, and the Authority, on 
the structure, timing, terms, and other similar matters concerning the Bonds. 

It is the Sinclair Water Authority’s present intention that RJA will underwrite the Bonds, subject to 
satisfaction of applicable procurement laws, formal approval by the Authority’s Board, finalizing the 
structure of the Bonds, and the execution of a mutually agreed upon Bond Purchase Agreement.  While 
the Authority presently engages RJA as the underwriter for the Bonds, this engagement letter is 
preliminary and nonbinding, and may be terminated at any time by the Authority, Baldwin County, 
Putnam County, or RJA without liability or obligation on the part of any party.  This Letter of Intent also 
serves as acknowledgement of receipt of the G-17 Disclosure Letter by the Sinclair Water Authority.  
Furthermore, we understand that similar Letters of Intent were delivered to Baldwin County and 
Putnam County and that Raymond James desires their engagements as well. 

 
Sincerely yours, 
       Acknowledged and Agreed to by: 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc.    Sinclair Water Authority 

By: ________ _______  By:  _____________________ 
         William J. Camp, Managing Director       
 
 
 
Attachment: G-17 Disclosure Letter 
 

52



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

     
August 10, 2017       
 
Sinclair Water Authority 
126 Cay Drive 
Milledgeville, Georgia 31061 
 

Attn:   Chairperson, Joan Minton 

 Re:   Disclosures by Underwriter 
  Pursuant to MSRB Rule G-17 
  Bond authorized in conjunction with Refunding Sinclair Water Authority Debt 
                          
 

Dear Chairperson Minton, 

We are writing to provide you, as a Board Member of the Sinclair Water Authority, Georgia (the 
“Issuer”), and an official of the Issuer with the authority to bind the Issuer by contract, pending approval 
of the full Authority Board with certain disclosures relating to the captioned bond issue (the “Bonds”), as 
required by Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) Rule G-17 as set forth in MSRB Notice 2012-
25 (May 7, 2012)1.  

The Issuer has engaged Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (“RJA”), to serve as an underwriter, and not 
as a financial advisor or municipal advisor, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. 

As part of our services as underwriter, RJA may provide advice concerning the structure, timing, terms, 
and other similar matters concerning the issuance of the Bonds.  

I. Disclosures Concerning the Underwriter’s Role: 

(i) MSRB Rule G-17 requires an underwriter to deal fairly at all times with both municipal issuers and 
investors. 

(ii) The primary role of the underwriter is to purchase the Bonds with a view to distribution in an arm’s-
length commercial transaction with the Issuer. The underwriter has financial and other interests that 
differ from those of the Issuer. 

(iii) Unlike a municipal advisor, the underwriter does not have a fiduciary duty to the Issuer under the 
federal securities laws and are, therefore, not required by federal law to act in the best interests of the 
Issuer without regard to their own financial or other interests. 

(iv) The underwriter has a duty to purchase the Bonds from the Issuer at a fair and reasonable price, but 
must balance that duty with their duty to sell the Bonds to investors at prices that are fair and 
reasonable. 

                                                           
1  Interpretive Notice Concerning the Application of MSRB Rule G-17 to Underwriters of Municipal Securities 

(effective August 2, 2012). 
 

53



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

 

(v) The underwriter will review the official statement for the Bonds in accordance with, and as part of, 
their respective responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws, as applied to the facts and 
circumstances of this transaction2.  

II. Disclosures Concerning the Underwriter’s Compensation: 

The underwriter will be compensated by a fee and/or an underwriting discount that will be set forth in 
the bond purchase agreement to be negotiated and entered into in connection with the issuance of the 
Bonds.  Payment or receipt of the underwriting fee or discount will be contingent on the closing of the 
transaction and the amount of the fee or discount may be based, in whole or in part, on a percentage of 
the principal amount of the Bonds.  While this form of compensation is customary in the municipal 
securities market, it presents a conflict of interest since the underwriters may have an incentive to 
recommend to the Issuer a transaction that is unnecessary or to recommend that the size of the 
transaction be larger than is necessary.  

III. Additional Conflicts and Business Relationships Disclosures: 

RJA has identified the following additional potential or actual material conflicts or business relationships 
we wish to call to your attention: 

In the ordinary course of its various business activities, RJA and its affiliates, officers, directors, and 
employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and may actively trade securities, 
derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps, and other financial instruments for 
their own account and for the accounts of customers.  Such investment and trading activities may 
involve or relate to assets, securities and/or instruments of the Issuer (whether directly, as collateral 
securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationships with the Issuer. 
RJA and its affiliates also may communicate independent investment recommendations, market advice 
or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, 
securities or instruments and at any time may hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, 
long and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments. 

• Conflicts of Interest 
 

o In the ordinary course of its business, RJA and its affiliates have engaged, and may in the 
future engage, in transactions with, and perform services for, the Issuer and its affiliates 
for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. 

IV. Disclosures Concerning Structure of Municipal Securities Financing:  

Since RJA has recommended to the Issuer a financing structure that may be considered a “complex 
municipal securities financing” for purposes of MSRB Rule G-17, attached is a description of the material 
financial characteristics of that financing structure as well as the material financial risks of the financing 
that are known to the underwriter and reasonably foreseeable at this time.  
                                                           
2  Under federal securities law, an issuer of securities has the primary responsibility for disclosure to investors.  

The review of the official statement by the underwriter is solely for purposes of satisfying the underwriters’ 
obligations under the federal securities laws and such review should not be construed by an issuer as a 
guarantee of the accuracy or completeness of the information in the official statement. 

54



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

In accordance with the requirements of MSRB Rule G-17, if RJA recommends a “complex municipal 
securities financing” to the Issuer that is not otherwise described herein, this letter will be 
supplemented to provide disclosure of the material financial characteristics of that financing structure 
as well as the material financial risks of the financing that are known to the underwriter and reasonably 
foreseeable at that time. 

If you or any other Issuer official has any questions or concerns about these disclosures, then please 
make those questions or concerns known immediately to the undersigned. In addition, the Issuer should 
consult with its own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, 
to the extent it deems appropriate. 

It is our understanding that you have the authority to bind the Issuer by contract with us, and that you 
are not a party to any conflict of interest relating to the subject transaction.  If our understanding is 
incorrect, please notify the undersigned immediately. 

Under MSRB Rules, we are required to seek your acknowledgement that you have received this letter.  
Accordingly, please send me an email to that effect.  Depending on the structure of the transaction that 
the Issuer decides to pursue, or if additional potential or actual material conflicts are identified, we may 
be required to send you additional disclosures regarding the material financial characteristics and risks 
of such transaction and/or describing those conflicts. At that time, we also will seek your 
acknowledgement of receipt of any such additional disclosures.  

We look forward to working with you and the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  We 
appreciate your business. 

Sincerely, 

      RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
             

By:      __ 
 
       William J. Camp 
       Managing Director 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

55



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

Fixed Rate Structure Disclosure 

The following is a general description of the financial characteristics and security structures of fixed rate 
municipal bonds (“Fixed Rate Bonds”), as well as a general description of certain financial risks that you 
should consider before deciding whether to issue Fixed Rate Bonds.  If you decide that you would like to 
pursue this financing alternative, we may provide you with As the issuer of the Bonds, you will be a party 
to the bond purchase agreement and certain other legal documents to be entered into in connection 
with the issuance of the Bonds, but the material financial risks described below will be borne by the 
obligor, as set forth in those legal documents.  A copy of our disclosure letter is also being sent to the 
obligor. 

Financial Characteristics 

Maturity and Interest.  Fixed Rate Bonds are interest-bearing debt securities issued by state and local 
governments, political subdivisions and agencies and authorities.  Maturity dates for Fixed Rate Bonds 
are fixed at the time of issuance and may include serial maturities (specified principal amounts are 
payable on the same date in each year until final maturity) or one or more term maturities (specified 
principal amounts are payable on each term maturity date) or a combination of serial and term 
maturities.  The final maturity date typically will range between 10 and 30 years from the date of 
issuance.    Interest on the Fixed Rate Bonds typically is paid semiannually at a stated fixed rate or rates 
for each maturity date.   

Redemption.  Fixed Rate Bonds may be subject to optional redemption, which allows you, at your 
option, to redeem some or all of the bonds on a date prior to scheduled maturity, such as in connection 
with the issuance of refunding bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates.  Fixed Rate Bonds will be 
subject to optional redemption only after the passage of a specified period of time, often approximately 
ten years from the date of issuance, and upon payment of the redemption price set forth in the bonds, 
which may include a redemption premium.  You will be required to send out a notice of optional 
redemption to the holders of the bonds, usually not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date.  
Fixed Rate Bonds with term maturity dates also may be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption, 
which requires you to redeem specified principal amounts of the bonds annually in advance of the term 
maturity date.  The mandatory sinking fund redemption price is 100% of the principal amount of the 
bonds to be redeemed.  

Security 

Payment of principal of and interest on a municipal security, including Fixed Rate Bonds, may be backed 
by various types of pledges and forms of security, some of which are described below. 

General Obligation Bonds 
“General obligation bonds” are debt securities to which your full faith and credit is pledged to pay 
principal and interest.  If you have taxing power, generally you will pledge to use your ad valorem 
(property) taxing power to pay principal and interest.  Ad valorem taxes necessary to pay debt service on 
general obligation bonds may not be subject to state constitutional property tax millage limits (an 
unlimited tax general obligation bond).  The term “limited” tax is used when such limits exist.  

56



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

General obligation bonds constitute a debt and, depending on applicable state law, may require that 
you obtain approval by voters prior to issuance.  In the event of default in required payments of interest 
or principal, the holders of general obligation bonds have certain rights under state law to compel you 
to impose a tax levy.  

Revenue Bonds 
 “Revenue bonds” are debt securities that are payable only from a specific source or sources of 
revenues.  Revenue bonds are not a pledge of your full faith and credit and you are obligated to pay 
principal and interest on your revenue bonds only from the revenue source(s) specifically pledged to the 
bonds.  Revenue bonds do not permit the bondholders to compel you to impose a tax levy for payment 
of debt service.  Pledged revenues may be derived from operation of the financed project or system, 
grants or excise or other specified taxes. Generally, subject to state law or local charter requirements, 
you are not required to obtain voter approval prior to issuance of revenue bonds.  If the specified 
source(s) of revenue become inadequate, a default in payment of principal or interest may occur.  
Various types of pledges of revenue may be used to secure interest and principal payments on revenue 
bonds.  The nature of these pledges may differ widely based on state law, the type of issuer, the type of 
revenue stream and other factors.  
The description above regarding “Security” is only a brief summary of certain possible security 
provisions for the bonds and is not intended as legal advice.  You should consult with your bond counsel 
for further information regarding the security for the bonds.  

Financial Risk Considerations 

Certain risks may arise in connection with your issuance of Fixed Rate Bonds, including some or all of the 
following: 

Issuer Default Risk 
You may be in default if the funds pledged to secure your bonds are not sufficient to pay debt service on 
the bonds when due.  The consequences of a default may be serious for you and, depending on 
applicable state law and the terms of the authorizing documents, the holders of the bonds, the trustee 
and any credit support provider may be able to exercise a range of available remedies against you.  For 
example, if the bonds are secured by a general obligation pledge, you may be ordered by a court to raise 
taxes.  Other budgetary adjustments also may be necessary to enable you to provide sufficient funds to 
pay debt service on the bonds.  If the bonds are revenue bonds, you may be required to take steps to 
increase the available revenues that are pledged as security for the bonds.  A default may negatively 
impact your credit ratings and may effectively limit your ability to publicly offer bonds or other securities 
at market interest rate levels.  Further, if you are unable to provide sufficient funds to remedy the 
default, subject to applicable state law and the terms of the authorizing documents, you may find it 
necessary to consider available alternatives under state law, including (for some issuers) state-
mandated receivership or bankruptcy.  A default also may occur if you are unable to comply with 
covenants or other provisions agreed to in connection with the issuance of the bonds.   
This description is only a brief summary of issues relating to defaults and is not intended as legal advice.  
You should consult with your bond counsel for further information regarding defaults and remedies. 

57



 

 
Two Buckhead Plaza, Suite 702  //  3050 Peachtree Road, N.W.  //  Atlanta, GA 30305 //  T 404.240.6840 //  www.raymondjames.com 

 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., member New York Stock Exchange/SIPC 

 

Redemption Risk 
Your ability to redeem the bonds prior to maturity may be limited, depending on the terms of any 
optional redemption provisions.  In the event that interest rates decline, you may be unable to take 
advantage of the lower interest rates to reduce debt service.   

Refinancing Risk 
If your financing plan contemplates refinancing some or all of the bonds at maturity (for example, if you 
have term maturities or if you choose a shorter final maturity than might otherwise be permitted under 
the applicable federal tax rules), market conditions or changes in law may limit or prevent you from 
refinancing those bonds when required.  Further, limitations in the federal tax rules on advance 
refunding of bonds (an advance refunding of bonds occurs when tax-exempt bonds are refunded more 
than 90 days prior to the date on which those bonds may be retired) may restrict your ability to refund 
the bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates.  

Reinvestment Risk 
You may have proceeds of the bonds to invest prior to the time that you are able to spend those 
proceeds for the authorized purpose.  Depending on market conditions, you may not be able to invest 
those proceeds at or near the rate of interest that you are paying on the bonds, which is referred to as 
“negative arbitrage”.   

Tax Compliance Risk 
The issuance of tax-exempt bonds is subject to a number of requirements under the United States 
Internal Revenue Code, as enforced by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS).  You must take certain steps 
and make certain representations prior to the issuance of tax-exempt bonds.  You also must covenant to 
take certain additional actions after issuance of the tax-exempt bonds.  A breach of your representations 
or your failure to comply with certain tax-related covenants may cause the interest on the bonds to 
become taxable retroactively to the date of issuance of the bonds, which may result in an increase in the 
interest rate that you pay on the bonds or the mandatory redemption of the bonds.  The IRS also may 
audit you or your bonds, in some cases on a random basis and in other cases targeted to specific types 
of bond issues or tax concerns.  If the bonds are declared taxable, or if you are subject to audit, the 
market price of your bonds may be adversely affected.  Further, your ability to issue other tax-exempt 
bonds also may be limited.   

This description of tax compliance risks is not intended as legal advice and you should consult with your 
bond counsel regarding tax implications of issuing the bonds. 

 
 

58


	Top
	1. 20170815 BOC Welcome - Call to Order
	2. 20170815 BOC Invocation
	3. 20170815 BOC Pledge of Allegiance
	4. 20170815 BOC Mullins Conditional Use
	8-3-17 P&amp;D Staff Recommendation-Mullins.docx
	P&amp;Z Commission Recommendations.pdf
	8-3-17 P&amp;Z Minutes-Mullins.doc
	Rezoning Map.pdf
	Mullins Conditional Use Application2.pdf

	5. 20170815 BOC Peebles Rezoning
	8-3-17 P&amp;D Staff Recommendation-Peebles.docx
	P&amp;Z Commission Recommendations.pdf
	8-3-17 P&amp;Z Minutes-Peebles.doc
	Rezoning Map.pdf
	Peebles Rezoning Application2.pdf

	6. 20170815 BOC Public Comments
	7. 20170815 BOC Approval of Agenda
	8. 20170815 Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 08-04-17 Minutes.pdf
	DRAFT 08-04-17 Budget Work Session Minutes.pdf
	DRAFT 08-07-17 Budget Work Session Minutes.pdf

	9. 20170815 BOC County Attorney Fee
	10. 20170815 BOC Regional TSPLOST
	Regional TSPLOST Process.pdf
	ACCG letter TSPLOST 072817.pdf
	AG letter TSPLOST.pdf

	11. 20170815 BOC SWA USDA loan
	8-10-17, Refunding  Ltr - Sinclair Water Refunding  .pdf
	LOI &amp; G-17  - Sinclair WA .pdf

	12. 20170815 Closing Reports
	Bottom

